
Generated 12/3/2015 11:21 AM 

 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
The Mission of the Town of Yucca Valley is to  

provide a government that is responsive to its citizens  
to ensure a safe and secure environment  

while maintaining the highest quality of life. 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 6:00 PM 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 8, 2015 

 
YUCCA VALLEY COMMUNITY CENTER 

YUCCA ROOM 
57090 TWENTYNINE PALMS HWY 

YUCCA VALLEY, CA 92284 

* * * *  
Planning Commission 

Jeff Drozd, Commissioner 
Jeff Evans, Commissioner 

Charles McHenry, Commissioner 
Steven Whitten, Vice Chairman 

Vicki Bridenstine, Chairman 
* * * *  

TOWN ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE: 
760-369-7207 

www.yucca-valley.org 

http://www.yucca-valley.org/


2 | P a g e  

AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 8, 2015 

6:00 PM 

The Town of Yucca Valley complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  If 
you require special assistance to attend or participate in this meeting, please call the 
Town Clerk’s Office at 760-369-7209 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
An agenda packet for the meeting, and any additional documents submitted to the 
majority of the Planning Commission, are available for public view in the Town Hall 
lobby and with respect to the staff agenda packet, on the Town’s website, 
www.yucca-valley.org, prior to the Regular Meeting.  Any materials submitted to the 
Agency after distribution of the agenda packet will be available for public review in 
the Town Clerk’s Office during normal business hours and will be available for review 
at the Regular Meeting.  For more information on an agenda item or the agenda 
process, please contact the Town Clerk’s office at 760-369-7209 ext. 226.  
 
If you wish to comment on any subject on the agenda, or any subject not on the 
agenda during public comments, please fill out a card and give it to the Commission 
Secretary.  The Chair will recognize you at the appropriate time.  Comment time is 
limited to 3 minutes. 
 
Where appropriate or deemed necessary, action may be taken on any item listed in 
the agenda. 

OPENING CEREMONIES:   

CALL TO ORDER:   

ROLL CALL:   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   

CONSENT AGENDA:   

All items listed on the consent calendar are considered to be routine matters or are 

considered formal documents covering previous Planning Commission instruction.  The 

items listed on the consent calendar may be enacted by one motion and a second.  

There will be no separate discussion of the consent calendar items unless a member of 

the Planning Commission or Town Staff requests discussion on specific consent 

calendar items at the beginning of the meeting.  Public requests to comment on 

http://www.yucca-valley.org/


3 | P a g e  

consent calendar items should be filed with the Commission Secretary before the 

consent calendar is called. 

MINUTES APPROVAL:   

1. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Nov 10, 2015 6:00 PM  

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:   

2. Landscape Plan, LP 01-14; Native Plant Plan, NPP 82-14; Sage Estates, Tract 
17862: Southeast corner of Golden Bee and Sage Avenue  

Recommendation:  
That the Planning Commission accepts the revised Native Plant 
inventory information and requires the submittal of a revised 
landscaping plan consistent with Section 9.07.130, Native Landscape 
Documentation Package, of the Yucca Valley Development Code. 

3. Commercial Establishment Outdoor Merchandise Display Commercial 
Establishment Parking Lot Sales  

Recommendation:  
That the Planning Commission reviews and discusses the sample draft 
ordinances, and forwards a recommendation to the Town Council for 
direction on the potential Development Code amendments. 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:   

PUBLIC COMMENTS:   

In order to assist in the orderly and timely conduct of the meeting, the Planning 

Commission takes this time to consider your comments on items of concern which are 

on the Closed Session or not on the agenda.  When you are called to speak, please 

state your name and community of residence.  Please limit your comments to three (3) 

minutes or less.  Inappropriate behavior which disrupts, disturbs or otherwise impedes 

the orderly conduct of the meeting will result in forfeiture of your public comment 

privileges.  The Planning Commission is prohibited by State law from taking action or 

discussing items not included on the printed agenda. 

STAFF REPORTS AND COMMENTS:   

 Private Land Development Report 

 Capital Projects Update Report 

COMMISSIONER REPORTS AND COMMENTS:   



4 | P a g e  

ANNOUNCEMENTS:   

The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be held on December 22, 2015. 

ADJOURNMENT:   



Generated 11/19/2015 11:05 AM 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

Chair Bridenstine called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

 
Commissioners Present: 
Jeff Drozd, Commissioner 
Jeff Evans, Commissioner 
Charles McHenry, Commissioner 
Steven Whitten, Vice Chairman 
Vicki Bridenstine, Chairman 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Steven Whitten, Vice Chairman 

SECONDER: Jeff Evans, Commissioner 

AYES: Drozd, Evans, McHenry, Whitten, Bridenstine 

CONSENT AGENDA 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Steven Whitten, Vice Chairman 

SECONDER: Charles McHenry, Commissioner 

AYES: Drozd, Evans, McHenry, Whitten, Bridenstine 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

1.    Approval of October 13, 2015 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 

Recommendation 
That the Planning Commission approve as submitted the minutes of October 13, 2015. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS ON CONSENT AGENDA 
 
None 
 
CLOSE PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1.1

Packet Pg. 5

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
N

o
v 

10
, 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  November 10, 2015 

2 | P a g e  

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
2. Environmental Assessment, EA 09-15 ; Variance, V 02-15; Land Use Compliance 

Review, LUCR 02-15 Social Security Administration Building  

Recommendation: 
Environmental Assessment, EA 09-15: That the Planning Commission finds the project 
exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15301, Class 01, Existing Facilities. 
 
Variance, V 02-15: That the Planning Commission approves V-02-15, approving a 17.5 
foot encroachment into a recorded building setback area, based upon the information 
contained within the staff report and the required findings. 
 
Land Use Compliance Review, LUCR 02-15: That the Planning Commission approves 
LUCR 02-15, approving the construction of a 554 square foot addition to the existing 
Social Security Administration building, based upon the findings, the information 
contained within the staff report and the recommended conditions of approval. 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Planning Technician Diane Olsen provided the staff report.  She provided an overview of 
the project which was a proposed addition to an existing Social Security Administration 
Building.  The project included a variance request to encroach 17.5 feet into the 
recorded building setback area.  Staff said that the proposed addition will match the 
materials and colors of original structure, and that with the addition the total parking 
requirement for the property would be 22 parking spaces, one of which must be ADA 
van accessible.  The proposed project will have 24 parking spaces, two of which are ADA 
compliant.  The property has a 68 foot setback identified for a proposed outer highway 
and for Edison facilities.  The outer highway was abandoned in 1974 and the applicant 
had obtained authorization from Edison to encroach into their setback.  Staff said that a 
variance could only be granted if the property met the four required findings.  Staff said 
that the proposed project did meet these requirements, and noted that the setback for 
the abandoned outer highway only existed on the north side of SR 62 from Scarvan to 
Palm and that the planned outer highway created a setback that was not applied to 
other similarly zoned properties in the surrounding area.  Staff also stated that the outer 
highway was not included in the General Plan circulation element.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEM 2 
 
None 
 
CLOSE PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Commissioner McHenry asked staff about Condition E18 in the Conditions of Approval, 
which referred to infrastructure on Kickapoo trail.  Staff said that was an error in the 

1.1

Packet Pg. 6

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
N

o
v 

10
, 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  November 10, 2015 

3 | P a g e  

conditions and would be removed.  Commissioner McHenry said that it was a 
straightforward project, and that he didn’t have any concerns. 
 
Commissioner Drozd asked if there would be any issues with the future highway 
widening.  Staff said that there would not be, and that the property owner had already 
signed a grant of easement for the highway widening.  
 
Commissioner Whitten spoke in support of the project.  He asked staff if it was possible 
to approve the variance in such a way that it applied to all of the parcels affected by the 
abandoned outer highway setback.  Staff said that there wasn’t a way to accomplish 
that as part of this item, but staff would research options for addressing that issue. 
 
 
Commissioner Evans asked if there were going to be any new fire code restrictions or 
other safety issues related to fire caused by the expansion of the property.  Staff said 
that prior to the issuance of permits, Building and Safety requires that plans approved 
by the County Fire Department must be submitted.  The County Fire department will 
determine what measures are required 
 
Chair Bridenstine asked if at least one of the ADA complaint spaces would be van 
accessible.  Staff said that it was.  Chair Bridenstine agreed with Commissioner Whitten 
that it would be desirable to remove the outer highway setback for the other affected 
properties.  
 
Staff noted that the property owner for this project had elected not to pay a 
representative to be present at the meeting.  They had reviewed the conditions of 
approval and stated that they had no concerns with them. 
 
MOTION 
 
Moved that the Planning Commission finds the project exempt from CEQA pursuant to 
Section 15301, Class 01, and that the Planning Commission approves V-02-15 based 
upon the information contained in the staff report and the required findings, and that 
the Planning Commission approves LUCR 02-15 approving the construction of a 554 
square foot addition to the existing Social Security Administration building, based upon 
the findings, the information contained within the staff report and the recommended 
conditions of approval, amended to remove condition E18. 
 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Steven Whitten, Vice Chairman 

SECONDER: Charles McHenry, Commissioner 

AYES: Drozd, Evans, McHenry, Whitten, Bridenstine 

1.1

Packet Pg. 7

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
N

o
v 

10
, 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  November 10, 2015 

4 | P a g e  

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 
3. Five Year Capital Improvement Program  

Recommendation: 
That the Planning Commission: 
 
A. Finds that the project is exempt from CEQA in accordance with Section 15378(b) (4) 

and Section 15061 (b) (3) of the California Environmental Quality Act.  The Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) is not a project nor is there possibility of a significant 
effect on the environment from the program.  Further the CIP does not result in a 
commitment to any specific project. 
 

B. Recommends that the Planning Commission recommends that Town Council 
approve and adopt the Five Year Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Years 
2015/2016 through 2019/2020 

 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Project Engineer Qishta provided the staff report.  The item was the presentation of the 
5-year Capital Improvement Program to the Planning Commission for review and 
recommendation to the Town Council. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEM 2 
 
None 
 
CLOSE PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Commissioner Evans asked staff about flood control funds.  Staff said that flood control 
projects would have to come from impact fees, and that staff would be looking into 
what options were available given the limited amount of funds available.  
 
Commissioner Whitten asked staff to clarify the need for design services on Onaga Trail.  
Staff said that the project was for the paving of Onaga from Kickapoo to Camino Del 
Cielo, and that this connection was important to future traffic circulation.  
Commissioner Whitten asked for clarification on the Yucca Trail safety study, and staff 
provided information about that process and stated that the report would include 
immediate, intermediate and long term safety improvements.   Commissioner Whitten 
also asked staff about the intersection of Sage and SR62, and staff said that they will be 
looking into alternatives. 
 
Commissioner Drozd asked about some of the unfunded projects, specifically the 
equestrian show grounds and the preforming arts facility.  Staff said that those items 

1.1

Packet Pg. 8

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
N

o
v 

10
, 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  November 10, 2015 

5 | P a g e  

were identified in the Park and Recreation Master Plan which was adopted in 2008.  
 
Commissioner McHenry asked staff about the proposed paving of Golden Bee.  Staff said 
that it was intended to provide an alternative neighborhood route on the south side of 
Town. 
 
Commissioner McHenry asked about paving of Golden Gee to Cholla?  Commissioner 
McHenry asked for additional details regarding Joshua Lane and Onaga Trail, which staff 
provided.  
 
Chair Bridenstine commented that she was happy to see no flood control until the 
master plan of drainage was revised.  She said that plan was flawed and that she would 
like it to be revised and upgraded before any drainage projects go forward.  She asked 
staff how they prioritized study projects.  Staff said that there was a variety of factors 
which go into establishing priorities on projects.  Chair Bridenstine said that some 
projects such as the widening of the highway is so high that it might be preferable to 
choose issues that can improve safety but are not as astronomically high.  Chair 
Bridenstine said that, given that the cost of some projects was so high, it might be 
preferable to choose items which can improve safety but were more achievable.  She 
also spoke in support of having projects ready to implement when funds become 
available. 
 
MOTION 
 
Commissioner Whitten moved that the Planning Commission finds that the project is 
exempt from CEQA in accordance with Section 15378(b) (4) and Section 15061 (b) (3) of 
the California Environmental Quality Act, and that the Planning Commission 
recommends that the Town Council approve and adopt the Five Year Capital 
Improvement Program for Fiscal Years 2015/2016 through 2019/2020. Commissioner 
Evans seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Steven Whitten, Vice Chairman 

SECONDER: Jeff Evans, Commissioner 

AYES: Drozd, Evans, McHenry, Whitten, Bridenstine 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Staff said they did not anticipate a meeting on October 24, 2015. 

1.1

Packet Pg. 9

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
N

o
v 

10
, 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  November 10, 2015 

6 | P a g e  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

  Nancy McHenry, Yucca Valley, spoke about the need to complete the sidewalks along 
SR62 to connect the existing sidewalk segments. 
 
CLOSE PUBLIC COMMENTS 

STAFF REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Deputy Town Manager Stueckle provided an update on the status of current and 
upcoming private land development, and stated that the capital improvement update 
had been included as part of the 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan staff report.   Staff 
also provided information regarding AB52 which could add a minimum of 45 days to the 
timeline of some projects before they can be advertised for Public Hearing. 

COMMISSIONER REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Commissioner Drozd thanked everyone, and wished everyone a great Thanksgiving.  
 
Commissioner Evans spoke in support of the Five Year Capital Improvement Plan.   He 
stated that the High School's Academic Council and site based management team had 
decided to draft a letter to the town request a traffic study on Sage in front of the High 
School.    He also thanked staff.  
 
Commissioner McHenry thanked staff and wished everyone a happy thanksgiving and a 
happy veterans day.  
 
Commissioner Whitten thanked staff and spoke about the importance of the armed 
forces and Veterans Day.   He said that he has spoken before of the need to connect the 
sidewalks on SR62, and he also commented on the monthly sewer cost and that it was 
unfortunate that Measure U didn't go through.  He thanked staff and his fellow 
commissioners.   
 
Chair Bridenstine spoke in support of her fellow Commissioners' comments.  She said 
that the gaps in the sidewalk along SR62 were a concern.   She thanked staff, and wished 
everyone a happy Thanksgiving.  

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be held on November 24, 2015 at 
6:00 PM. 

1.1

Packet Pg. 10

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
N

o
v 

10
, 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  November 10, 2015 

7 | P a g e  

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 pm. 
 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Allison Brucker 

Commission Secretary 

1.1

Packet Pg. 11

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
N

o
v 

10
, 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



Town of Yucca Valley 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

To: Honorable Chair and Planning Commissioners 

From: Diane Olsen, Planning Technician  

Shane Stueckle, Deputy Town Manager 

Date: November 23, 2015 

Meeting Date: December 8, 2015 

  

Subject: Landscape Plan, LP 01-14; Native Plant Plan, NPP 82-14; Sage Estates, Tract 

17862: Southeast corner of Golden Bee and Sage Avenue 

 
Recommendation: 
That the Planning Commission accepts the revised Native Plant inventory information and 

requires the submittal of a revised landscaping plan consistent with Section 9.07.130, Native 

Landscape Documentation Package, of the Yucca Valley Development Code. 

 

Prior Review 
The Planning Commission reviewed this matter at its meeting of December 2, 2014.  
 
Executive Summary 
The Yucca Valley Development Code, Section 9.07.130, Native Landscape Documentation 

Package, establishes the standards and requirements for issuance of native plant permits for 

new residential subdivisions, as well as other projects.  The Planning Commission issued 

approvals for Tract 17862 at the meeting of December 2, 2014.  Since that time, the applicant 

has submitted revised native plant inventory information.  Pursuant to the letter from Ray 

Lopez dated October 8, 2015, the applicant is requesting approval “to adjust the planting design 

in the field to adjust for the new numbers in lieu of creating a new landscape native relocation 

plan”.  

 
Order of Procedure 

Request Staff Report  

Request Public Comment  

Commission Discussion/Questions of Staff  

Motion/Second 

Discussion on Motion 

Call the Question (Roll Call Vote) 

 
 
Discussion  

2

Packet Pg. 12



At the Planning Commission meeting of December 2, 2014, the Planning Commission approved 

the Landscaping Plan and Native Plant Plan for Tract 17862, also referred to as Sage Estates. 

 

A total of 790 Joshua Trees and 422 Mojave Yucca plants are identified as likely to survive 

relocation/transplanting. 

 

A total of 69 Joshua Trees and 95 Mojave Yucca plants are identified as not likely to survive 

relocation/transplanting. 

 

A minimum of 525 Joshua Trees and 372 Yucca plants are being relocated back on site; 

additional plants may be transplanted back on-site based upon available locations.   

 

Approximately 265 Joshua Trees and 50 Mojave Yucca are available for adoption, unless these 

plants are used for on-site landscaping beyond those numbers identified above. 

 

The above numbers may be modified, subject to appropriate approval levels, based upon an 

updated native plant survey. 

 

The applicant will install decomposed granite within the landscaping areas of the Sage Avenue 

parkway and individual single family residential lots to the back of sidewalk(s); 

 

In 2009, a Native Plant Survey was conducted at the project site.  That survey identified 517 

Mojave Yuccas and 859 Joshua Trees present on the site.  In February of 2015, a new Native 

Plant Survey was conducted which identified only 166 Mojave Yuccas, some of which are 

clusters, and 298 Joshua Trees located on the project site. 

 

On October 29, 2015, the applicant submitted a request for revision to the above approval.  A 

copy of the application request is attached to this staff report.  Pursuant to the letter from Ray 

Lopez dated October 08, 2015, the applicant is requesting approval “to adjust the planting 

design in the field to adjust for the new numbers in lieu of creating a new landscape native 

relocation plan”.  

 

In summary, the revised application request makes the following requested modifications to 

the approved permits for the project site. 

 

PLANT   ORIGINAL APPROVAL  REVISED REQUEST 

Joshua Trees  525     210 

Mojave Yucca’s 372     310 

Cats Claws  240     250 

 

2

Packet Pg. 13



As indicated at the December 2, 2014 meeting, the applicant indicated the following would be 

available for adoption off site. 

 

PLANT   ORIGINAL APPROVAL  REVISED REQUEST 

Joshua Trees  265     0 

Mojave Yucca’s 50     0 

Cats Claws  0     0 

 

And finally, the original approved permits indicated 69 Joshua Trees and 95 Mojave Yuccas 

would not survive the transplanting process. 

 

The applicant has requested that the requirement to prepare a plan identifying the proposed 

placement and locations of native plants be waived, and that the plants are placed as desired 

during construction.  This request is contrary to development regulations, and does not allow 

for staff or Planning Commission review or approval of a native plant plan as required by the 

Development Code. 

 
Alternatives 
Staff recommends no alternative action. 
 
Fiscal Impact: NA 
 

Attachments:  

01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15 
02 Planning Commission Minutes 12-02-2014 
03 Section 9.07.130 Native Plants 

2

Packet Pg. 14



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
5

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
6

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
7

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
8

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
9

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
0

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
1

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
2

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
3

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
4

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
5

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
6

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
7

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
8

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
9

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
0

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
1

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
2

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
3

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
4

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
5

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
6

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
7

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
8

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
9

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
0

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
1

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
2

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
3

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
4

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
5

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
6

Attachment: 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
7

Attachment: 02 Planning Commission Minutes 12-02-2014  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
8

Attachment: 02 Planning Commission Minutes 12-02-2014  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
9

Attachment: 02 Planning Commission Minutes 12-02-2014  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
0

Attachment: 02 Planning Commission Minutes 12-02-2014  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
1

Attachment: 02 Planning Commission Minutes 12-02-2014  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.
b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
2

Attachment: 02 Planning Commission Minutes 12-02-2014  (1219 : Sage Estates NPP)



2.c

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

3 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 9
.0

7.
13

0 
N

at
iv

e 
P

la
n

ts
  (

12
19

 :
 S

ag
e 

E
st

at
es

 N
P

P
)



2.c

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

3 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 9
.0

7.
13

0 
N

at
iv

e 
P

la
n

ts
  (

12
19

 :
 S

ag
e 

E
st

at
es

 N
P

P
)



2.c

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

3 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 9
.0

7.
13

0 
N

at
iv

e 
P

la
n

ts
  (

12
19

 :
 S

ag
e 

E
st

at
es

 N
P

P
)



2.c

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

3 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 9
.0

7.
13

0 
N

at
iv

e 
P

la
n

ts
  (

12
19

 :
 S

ag
e 

E
st

at
es

 N
P

P
)



2.c

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

3 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 9
.0

7.
13

0 
N

at
iv

e 
P

la
n

ts
  (

12
19

 :
 S

ag
e 

E
st

at
es

 N
P

P
)



2.c

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

3 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 9
.0

7.
13

0 
N

at
iv

e 
P

la
n

ts
  (

12
19

 :
 S

ag
e 

E
st

at
es

 N
P

P
)



2.c

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

3 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 9
.0

7.
13

0 
N

at
iv

e 
P

la
n

ts
  (

12
19

 :
 S

ag
e 

E
st

at
es

 N
P

P
)



2.c

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

3 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 9
.0

7.
13

0 
N

at
iv

e 
P

la
n

ts
  (

12
19

 :
 S

ag
e 

E
st

at
es

 N
P

P
)



2.c

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

3 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 9
.0

7.
13

0 
N

at
iv

e 
P

la
n

ts
  (

12
19

 :
 S

ag
e 

E
st

at
es

 N
P

P
)



Town of Yucca Valley 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

To: Honorable Chair and Planning Commissioners 

From: Diane Olsen, Planning Technician  

Shane Stueckle, Deputy Town Manager 

Date: November 19, 2015 

Meeting Date: December 8, 2015 

  

Subject: Commercial Establishment Outdoor Merchandise Display Commercial 

Establishment Parking Lot Sales 

 
Recommendation: 
That the Planning Commission reviews and discusses the sample draft ordinances, and forwards 
a recommendation to the Town Council for direction on the potential Development Code 
amendments. 
 

Prior Review 
The Planning Commission reviewed this matter at its meeting of September 22, 2015. 
 
Executive Summary 
Retail store special events or parking lot sales are currently prohibited by the Development 
Code.  Chapter 9.38, Temporary Special Events, allow for certain short term events, but these 
are not related to retail commercial outlets.  Further details regarding Chapter 9.38 are 
provided within the body of the staff report.  Chapter 9.39, Temporary Use Permits allows for a 
variety of temporary uses, but none of those include or allow for retail stores to conduct those 
activities. 
 
Outdoor display of merchandise during regular business hours is also a topic that is not 
identified as a permitted use within the Development Code and is therefore prohibited by the 
Development Code.   
 
Staff prepared a sample draft ordinance to assist the Commission in their discussion. 
 
 
Order of Procedure 

Request Staff Report  
 Request Public Comment  
 Commission Discussion/Questions of Staff  
 Motion/Second 
 Discussion on Motion 

Call The Question (Roll Call Vote) 

3

Packet Pg. 62



 
 
Discussion  
At the meeting of September 22, 2015, the Commission discussed standards for parking lots 
sales such as limiting the square footage, maintaining minimum parking standards, maintaining 
required pedestrian access, and limiting the number of events per year. The Commission also 
has broad based discussion on outdoor merchandise diplay areas. Based upon the 
Commission’s discussion, staff developed the following standards for Commission discussion.  
 
 
9.09.060-Commercial Establishment, Outdoor Display 

A. General Provisions.  Commercial establishments in the C-C, C-G, C-O, C-MU and C-N 

zoning districts are allowed outdoor display of merchandise based upon the following 

standards. 

 1.  All outdoor display shall be removed at the close of business operations. 

2.  Outdoor displays proposed for those commercial establishments open for business 24 

hours per day require Planning Commission approval of a Conditional Use Permit for 

outdoor displays. 

3.  Outdoor display areas shall not be located within parking lots, landscape areas, public 

easements or rights of way. 

4.  Outdoor display areas shall conform to all ADA accessibility standards and 

requirements, in addition to San Bernardino County Fire standards. 

5.  Outdoor display areas shall be limited to 250 square feet in total area. 

6.  Outdoor display areas proposed in excess of 250 square feet shall file a Conditional 

Use Permit application for review and consideration by the Planning Commission. 

 
 
Chapter 9.38, Parking Lot Sales 
 

TABLE 3-24:  

SPECIAL EVENTS 

Permitted Special 

Events (With a 

Special Event 

Permit) 

Land Use District Permitted 
Maximum Number of 

Days Per Events 

Maximum Number 

of Events Per 

Calendar Year Per 

Location and/or 

Vendor 

Church tent rival 

meetings 
All Land Use Districts 10 3 

Circus, carnival 

All “C”, “I”, and Public/Quasi 

Public Land Use Districts, , all 

land use districts in Old Town 

Specific Plan Area 

10 4 

3

Packet Pg. 63



TABLE 3-24:  

SPECIAL EVENTS 

Permitted Special 

Events (With a 

Special Event 

Permit) 

Land Use District Permitted 
Maximum Number of 

Days Per Events 

Maximum Number 

of Events Per 

Calendar Year Per 

Location and/or 

Vendor 

Fair, concerts, 

parades, exhibits, 

festivals, art shows, 

car shows, street 

fairs or similar 

events 

All “C”, “I”, and Public/Quasi 

Public Land Use Districts, all 

land use districts in Old Town 

Specific Plan Area 

10 10 

Certified Farmers 

Markets 

All “C”, “I”, and Public/Quasi 

Public Land Use Districts,  all 

land use districts in Old Town 

Specific Plan Area 

Two days per week 
Permit is valid for 

one year 

Commercial 

Establishment 

Parking Lot Sales 

All C-C, C-G, C-0, C-MU, and 

C-N Zoning Districts 
Three days per event Four Annually 

Seasonal Holiday 

Sales Facilities 
Non-Residential Districts See Subsection D 3 

 
 

1. Temporary Special Event Permits for Parking Lot Sales shall be limited to once per 
quarter in any calendar year. 

2. Parking Lot Sales events shall be limited to three consecutive days. 
3. Minimum parking standards shall be maintained. 
4. No merchandise shall be located within the public right-of-way. 
5. Outdoor display areas shall conform to all ADA accessibility standards and requirements, 

in addition to San Bernardino County Fire standards. 
 

 
Staff is requesting Commission discussions on these topics and direction on whether 
Development Code Amendments should be prepared.  If the Commission believes that 
amendments should be prepared, that recommendation would be forwarded to the Town 
Council for final consideration prior to bringing a draft ordinance to the Commission for 
consideration. 
 
Alternatives 
The Commission may discuss all alternatives available at this time. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
NA 

3

Packet Pg. 64



 

Attachments:  

Development Code, Article 2, Table 2-15 
Development Code Chapter 9.38 - Temporary Special Events 
Development Code Chapter 9.39 - Temporary Uses and Structures 
Sample Outdoor Display Ordinance 
Sample Parking Lot Sale Ordinance 

3

Packet Pg. 65



Town of Yucca Valley Development Code 

Chapter 9. 09- Commercial Districts 

2. There are no structural off-street, on-site improvements lack thereof which pose an 
immediate threat to the health safety or general welfare of the Town. 

3. There are no additions or alterations to the square footage of the existing structure. 

C. 

TABLE2-15: 
PERMITTED LAND USES AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Zoning Districts C-C: Community Commercial C-0: Office Commercial C-N: Neighborhood Commercial 

C-G: General Commercial C-MU: Mixed Use Commercial 

Permit Required SPR: Site Plan and Design Review 
TSEP: Temporary Special Event Permit 

CUP: Conditional Use Permit 
TUP: Temporary Use Permit 

PD: Planned Development Review P: Permitted 

Type ofUse 
Permit Required by Zoning District 

C-C I C-G I C-0 I C-MU I C-N I I 
Residential 

Mixed Use Development NP s NP s NP 

Single-Family Dwelling Unit NP NP NP NP NP 

Single-Room Occupancy 
NP CUP NP CUP CUP 

Housing 

Care Uses 

Child Day Care (small family) NP CUP NP SPR CUP 

Child Day Care (large family) NP CUP NP CUP CUP 

Child Day Care Center NP CUP NP CUP CUP 

Homeless Shelter NP NP NP NP NP 

Home Occupation HOP HOP HOP HOP HOP 

Social Care, Congregate Care, 
Convalescent Care Facilities 

NP CUP NP CUP CUP 

SUP: Special Use Permit 
S: Specific Plan 

NP: Not Allowed 

Notes and Other 

Regulations 

Single family residences located 
in the commercial land use 
districts are subject to the 
standards specified Ill Section 
9.08.040 

See Section 9.14.020 (Child Day 
Care Centers) 

Including Transitional and 
supportive uses. 

Pennitted for Single family 
residences located in the 
commercial land use districts 
pursuant to Chapter 9.50 (Home 
Occupation) 

Including but not limited to 
elderly care and sober living 
facilities 

2-77 

3.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e,
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

, T
ab

le
 2

-1
5 

 (
12

17
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

S
al

es
)



Town of Yucca Valley Development Code 

Chapter 9. 09- Commercial Districts 

TABLE2-15: 
PERMITTED LAND USES AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Zoning Districts C-C: Community Commercial C-0: Office Commercial C-N: Neighborhood Commercial 

C-G: General Commercial C-MU: Mixed Use Commercial 

Permit Required SPR: Site Plan and Design Review 
TSEP: Temporary Special Event Permit 

CUP: Conditional Use Permit 
TUP: Temporary Use Permit 

PD: Planned Development Review P: Permitted 

Type of Use 
Permit Required by Zoning District 

C-C I C-G I C-0 I C-MU I C-N I I 
Agriculture, Animal Related, and Open Space Uses 

Animal Care Facility (w/o 
exterior kennel, pens and SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 
runs) 

Animal Care Facility 
(w/exterior kennel, pens and CUP CUP NP NP CUP 
runs) 

Community Gardens SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Equestrian Facility CUP CUP NP NP CUP 

Feed and Tack CUP CUP NP NP CUP 

Horticulture/ Agriculture SPR SPR NP NP SPR 

Kennels and Catteries (over 
NP NP NP NP SUP 

15 animals) 

Livestock Operations NP NP NP NP NP 

Natural Resources 
NP NP NP NP NP 

Development 

Nature Preserve SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Nursery/Garden Supply (with 
SPR SPR SPR CUP CUP 

outdoor display) 

Nursery/Garden Supply 
SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

(without outdoor display) 

Retail Commercial Uses 

Antique/Second Hand Stores SPR SPR NP SPR SPR 

Adult-Oriented Business NP CUP NP NP NP 

Appliance Sales and Home 
SPR SPR SPR SPR NP 

Goods (no repair) 

Auto and Vehicle Sales and 
CUP CUP NP CUP CUP 

Rentals and Parts Sales 

2-78 

SUP: Special Use Permit 
S: Specific Plan 

NP : Not Allowed 

Notes and Other 

Regulations 

Including, but not limited to 
animal hospitals, veterinarian, pet 
stores, and grooming. 

Including, but not limited to crop 
production, orchards, and 
vineyards. 

See Chapter 9.52 (Adult-
Oriented Uses) 

3.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e,
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

, T
ab

le
 2

-1
5 

 (
12

17
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

S
al

es
)



Town of Yucca Valley Development Code 

Chapter 9. 09- Commercial Districts 

TABLE2-15: 
PERMITTED LAND USES AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Zoning Districts C-C: Community Commercial C-0: Office Commercial C-N: Neighborhood Commercial 

C-G: General Commercial C-MU: Mixed Use Commercial 

Permit Required SPR: Site Plan and Design Review 
TSEP: Temporary Special Event Permit 

CUP: Conditional Use Permit 
TUP: Temporary Use Permit 

PD: Planned Development Review P: Permitted 

Type of Use 
C-C 

Permit Required by Zoning District 

C-G C-0 C-MU C-N 

Building and Landscape 
SPR SPR SPR CUP CUP 

Materials Sales (indoor) 

Building and Landscape 
CUP CUP NP CUP NP 

Materials Sales (outdoor) 

Convenience Store CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 

Construction and Heavy 
NP CUP NP NP NP 

Equipment Sales and Rentals 

Farmers Market/ Arts and 
TSEP TSEP TSEP TSEP TSEP 

Crafts Events 

Fuel/Propane Dealer NP NP NP NP NP 

Grocery, Supermarket, 
Specialty Food Store, Drug SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 
Store 

Manufactured Home Sales NP NP NP NP NP 

Boat and Recreational Vehicle 
CUP CUP NP-- CUP CUP 

Sales 

Pawn Shop SPR SPR NP NP NP 

Retail Store (less than 80,000 
SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

sf) 

Retail Store (80,000 or greater 
SPR SPR CUP CUP CUP 

sf) 

Seasonal Holiday Sales 
TSEP TSEP TSEP TSEP TSEP 

Facilities 

Swap Meet, Outdoor Market, 
NP-- CUP NP NP NP 

Auction Yard (permanent) 

Shopping Center 
(neighborhood, community, or CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 
regional), 

Warehouse Retail CUP SPR CUP NP CUP 

SUP: Special Use Permit 
S: Specific Plan 

NP : Not Allowed 

Notes and Other 

Regulations 

See Chapter 9 . .38(Temporary 
Special Events) 

See Section 9.14.040 (Gas or 
Other Fueling Stations) 

See Chapter 9.3 8 (Temporary 
Special Events Permits ) 

See Section 9.14.080 (Swap 
Meets) 

2-79 

3.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e,
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

, T
ab

le
 2

-1
5 

 (
12

17
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

S
al

es
)



Town of Yucca Valley Development Code 

Chapter 9.09- Commercial Districts 

TABLE2-15: 
PERMITTED LAND USES AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Zoning Districts C-C: Community Commercial C-0: Office Commercial C-N: Neighborhood Commercial 
C-G: General Commercial C-MU: Mixed Use Commercial 

Permit Required SPR: Site Plan and Design Review 
TSEP: Temporary Special Event Permit 

CUP: Conditional Use Permit 
TUP: Temporary Use Permit 

PD: Planned Development Review P: Permitted 

Type of Use 
Permit Required by Zoning District 

C-C I C-G I C-0 I C-MU I C-N I I 
Business, Financial, and Professional 

ATM p p p p p 

Financial Institution and 
SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Related Service 

Laboratory SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Office (Business, 
Professional, Corporate, SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 
Medical) 

Eating and Drinking Establishments 

Bakery (retail), Coffee Shop 
and Similar Uses 

SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Bakery (wholesale) SPR SPR SPR CUP NP 

Bar, Lounge, Nightclub, 
CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 

Tavern, and Pool Hall 

Catering Service SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Fast Food (w/drive through, 
CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP delivery) 

Fast Food (w/o drive through, 
delivery) 

CUP SPR SPR SPR CUP 

Full Service Restaurant SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Commercial Service Uses 

Ambulance Service SPR SPR SPR NP NP 

Appliance Sales, Service, 
SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Repair, and Rental 

Automobile Gas Station SPR SPR SPR CUP CUP 

Automobile Service/Repair 
(minor repair and CUP SPR CUP CUP CUP 
maintenance) 

2-80 

SUP: Special Use Permit 
S: Specific Plan 

NP : Not Allowed 

Notes and Other 

Regulations 

Including but not limited to ice 
cream shops, frozen yogurt 
shops, and candy/sweet shops 

See Section 9.14.030 (Drive-
in/Drive through Establishments) 

See Section 9.14.040 (Gas or 
Other Fueling Stations) 

3.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e,
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

, T
ab

le
 2

-1
5 

 (
12

17
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

S
al

es
)



Town of Yucca Valley Development Code 

Chapter 9.09- Commercial Districts 

TABLE2-15: 
PERMITTED LAND USES AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Zoning Districts C-C: Community Commercial C-0: Office Commercial C-N: Neighborhood Commercial 

C-G: General Commercial C-MU: Mixed Use Commercial 

Permit Required SPR: Site Plan and Design Review 
TSEP: Temporary Special Event Permit 

CUP: Conditional Use Permit 
TUP: Temporary Use Permit 

PD: Planned Development Review P: Permitted 

Permit Required by Zoning District 
Type of Use 

C-C C-G C-0 C-MU C-N 

Automobile Service/Repair 
NP CUP NP NP NP 

(major Repair/body work) 

Automobile Washing (car 
CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 

wash) 

Automobile Washing (car 
wash) p p p p p 

(fund raising, temporary) 

Barber, Beauty Shop, and 
other Similar Personal Service SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 
Uses 

Printing and Duplication 
SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Services 

Equipment Sales, Service, 
CUP CUP CUP NP CUP 

Repair, and Rental 

Fitness Center (less than 2,000 
SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

sf.) 

Fitness Center (more than 
CUP CUP CUP NP CUP 

2,000 sf.) 

Fortune Telling and Related 
SPR SPR SPR CUP SPR 

Service 

Funeral Service (excluding 
NP SPR CUP NP NP 

crematorium) 

Funeral Service (including 
NP CUP CUP NP NP 

crematorium) 

Laundry and Dry Cleaning SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Locksmith SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Maintenance and Repair 
SPR SPR CUP CUP CUP 

(Minor) 

Maintenance and Repair 
NP CUP NP NP NP 

(Major) 

SUP: Special Use Permit 
S: Specific Plan 

NP : Not Allowed 

Notes and Other 

Regulations 

2-81 

3.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e,
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

, T
ab

le
 2

-1
5 

 (
12

17
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

S
al

es
)



Town of Yucca Valley Development Code 

Chapter 9.09- Commercial Districts 

TABLE2-15: 
PERMITTED LAND USES AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Zoning Districts C-C: Community Commercial C-0: Office Commercial C-N: Neighborhood Commercial 
C-G: General Commercial C-MU: Mixed Use Commercial 

Permit Required SPR: Site Plan and Design Review 
TSEP: Temporary Special Event Permit 

CUP: Conditional Use Permit 
TUP: Temporary Use Permit 

PD: Planned Development Review P: Permitted 

Permit Required by Zoning District 
Type of Use 

C-C C-G C-0 C-MU C-N 

Massage Establishment SPL SPL SPL SPL SPL 

Studio (dance, music, martial SPR/ 
SPR SPR SPR SPR arts, artists) CUP 

Tattoo and Piercing SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Commercial Recreation 

Amusement Arcade or Park NP CUP NP NP NP 

Carnivals/Circuses/Festivals/ 
TSEP TSEP TSEP TSEP TSEP 

Fairs 

Campgrounds NP NP NP NP NP 

Concerts, Open-Air Theaters, 

Outdoor Entertainment Events 
TSEP TSEP TSEP TSEP TSEP 

Game Arcade, Internet Cafe, 
CUP CUP NP CUP CUP and Similar Businesses 

Golf Course SPR SPR SPR SPR CUP 

Hookah Lounge NP CUP NP NP CUP 

Parks/ Recreation Facilities SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Private Clubs and Lodges CUP SPR CUP NP CUP 

Recreation and Entertainment 
(commercial indoor and CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 
outdoor) 

Recreational Vehicle Park NP NP NP NP NP 

Industry, Manufacturing and Processing, Wholesaling 

Construction/Contractor 
NP CUP NP NP NP Storage Yard 

2-82 

SUP: Special Use Permit 
S: Specific Plan 

NP : Not Allowed 

Notes and Other 

Regulations 

See Municipal Code Section 
41.11 (Massage Services and 
Establishments) 

Less than 2,000 sf 

(SPR for C-MU) 

More than 2,000 sf 

(CUP for C-MU) 

See Chapter 9.3 8 (Temporary 
Special Events) 

See Chapter 9.38 (Temporary 
Special Events) 

See Section 9.08.060 
(Recreational Vehicle Parks) 

3.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e,
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

, T
ab

le
 2

-1
5 

 (
12

17
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

S
al

es
)



Town of Yucca Valley Development Code 

Chapter 9.09- Commercial Districts 

TABLE2-15: 
PERMITTED LAND USES AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Zoning Districts C-C: Community Commercial C-0: Office Commercial C-N: Neighborhood Commercial 
C-G: General Commercial C-MU: Mixed Use Commercial 

Permit Required SPR: Site Plan and Design Review 
TSEP: Temporary Special Event Permit 

CUP: Conditional Use Permit 
TUP: Temporary Use Permit 

PD: Planned Development Review P: Permitted 

Permit Required by Zoning District 
Type of Use 

C-C C-G C-0 C-MU C-N 

Hazardous Waste Operations NP NP NP NP NP 

Manufacturing Operations NP NP NP NP NP 

Motor Vehicle 
NP NP NP NP NP 

Storage/Impound Facility 

Recycling Facility (small 
SUP SUP SUP SUP SUP 

collection facility) 

Recycling Facility (processing 
facility) NP NP NP NP NP 

Research and Development SPR SPR SPR CUP SPR 

Salvage Facility NP NP NP NP NP 

Storage - Mini-Storage 
NP NP NP NP NP 

(personal storage) 

Storage (outdoor vehicles 
NP NP NP NP NP 

storage) 

Wholesaling and Distribution NP NP NP NP NP 

Transportation, Communications, and Infrastructure 

Communication Facility CUP CUP NP NP CUP 

Wireless Telecommunication CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 
Facilities 

Parking Lot SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Public/Government Facilities SPR SPR SPR CUP CUP 

Public Safety Uses 
SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

(permanent) 

SUP: Special Use Permit 
S: Specific Plan 

NP :Not Allowed 

Notes and Other 

Regulations 

See Section 9.34.110 (Hazardous 
Materials) 

See Section 9.14.070 (Recycling 
Facilities) 

See Section 9.14.060 (Mini-
Storage Facilities) 

Including, but not limited to, 
radio and television stations or 
towers, satellite receiving 
stations, but not wireless 
telecommunication facilities 

Pursuant to Chapter 9.44 

See Chapter 9.33 (Parking and 
Loading Standards). Accessory or 
incidental to the primary use of 
the same property. 

2-83 

3.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e,
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

, T
ab

le
 2

-1
5 

 (
12

17
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

S
al

es
)



Town of Yucca Valley Development Code 

Chapter 9.09- Commercial Districts 

TABLE2-15: 
PERMITTED LAND USES AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Zoning Districts C-C: Community Commercial C-0: Office Commercial C-N: Neighborhood Commercial 

C-G: General Commercial C-MU: Mixed Use Commercial 

Permit Required SPR: Site Plan and Design Review 
TSEP: Temporary Special Event Permit 

CUP: Conditional Use Permit 
TUP: Temporary Use Permit 

PD: Planned Development Review P: Permitted 

Type of Use 
C-C 

Permit Required by Zoning District 

C-G C-0 C-MU C-N 

Solar Energy Systems p p p p p 
(accessory ) 

Solar Energy Systems (Utility 
NP NP NP NP NP 

grade/primary use ) 

Transmission utility lines, 
CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 

pipelines, and control stations 

Utilities (major) CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 

Wind Energy System SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 
(accessory) 

Wind Energy System (utility 
NP NP NP NP NP 

grade /primary use) 

Other Uses 

Cemeteries, Including Pet 
NP CUP NP NP NP 

Cemeteries 

Churches, Religious 
Assembly, and Other Public CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 
Assembly 

Conference Centers and 
CUP CUP CUP NP NP 

Group Camps 

Correctional Institution NP NP NP NP NP 

Emergency Facilities 
TUP TUP TUP TUP TUP 

(temporary) 

Hotels and Motels SPR SPR CUP SPR CUP 

Hospitals/Medical! 
CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 

Rehabilitation Centers/Clinics 

Medical Marijuana 
NP NP NP NP NP 

Dispensary 

Museum, Library, Art 
SPR SPR SPR SPR SPR 

Gallery, Outdoor Exhibit 

Schools (private, vocational, 
CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 

charter, and other) 

2-84 

SUP: Special Use Permit 
S: Specific Plan 

NP :Not Allowed 

Notes and Other 

Regulations 

See Section 9.45.010 (Solar 
Energy Systems) 

See Section 9.44.010 (Solar 
Energy Systems) 

See Section 9.46.010 ( Wind 
Energy System) 

See Section 9.44.010 (Wind 
Energy System) 

See Chapter 9.39 (Temporary 
Uses and Structures) 

See Section 9.14.050 (Medical 
Marijuana Dispensary) 

3.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e,
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

, T
ab

le
 2

-1
5 

 (
12

17
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

S
al

es
)



Town of Yucca Valley Development Code 

Chapter 9.09- Commercial Districts 

TABLE2-15: 
PERMITTED LAND USES AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Zoning Districts C-C: Community Commercial C-0: Office Commercial C-N: Neighborhood Commercial 

C-G: General Commercial C-MU: Mixed Use Commercial 

Permit Required SPR: Site Plan and Design Review CUP: Conditional Use Permit 
TSEP: Temporary Special Event Permit TUP: Temporary Use Permit 

PD: Planned Development Review P: Permitted 

Permit Required by Zoning District 
Type of Use 

C-G C-0 C-N C-C C-MU 

Temporary Special Events TSEP TSEP TSEP TSEP TSEP 

Temporary Structures and 
TUP TUP TUP TUP TUP 

Uses 

9.09.030- Development Standards 

SUP: Special Use Permit 
S: Specific Plan 

NP: Not Allowed 

Notes and Other 

Regulations 

See Chapter 9.38 (Temporary 
Special Events) 

See Chapter 9.39 (Temporary 
Uses and Structures) 

Subdivisions, new land uses and structures, and alterations to existing land uses and structures shall be 
designed, constructed, and established in compliance with the requirements in Table 2-X, in addition to 
the applicable standards (e.g., landscaping, parking and loading, etc.) in Article 3 (General Development 
Standards). 

TABLE2-16: 
COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

Development Feature 

Minimum Lot Size2 

Minimum Lot Dimensions 
(W: width, D: depth) 

C-C 

1 acre4 

W: 120ft. 
D: 120ft. 

Maximum Lot Dimensions 1:3 
(width to depth) 

C-G 

5 acres4 

W: 120 
ft. 
D: 120 
ft .. 

1:3 

Requirements by Zoning Districe 

C-0 

1 acres4 

W: 120ft. 
D: 120ft .. 

1:3 

C-MU C-N 

See map suffix3 

1 acre4 

W: 120ft. 
D: 120ft .. 

1:3 

1 acre4 

W: 120ft. 
D: 120ft .. 

1:3 

Setbacks Minimum setbacks required unless different setbacks are delineated on Final Map, Parcel 
Map, Composite Development Plan, or are allowed pursuant to Section XX.XXX. 

: : r:~~:: ::::: :_:: ::::::::::::-::::}:::: :: Jw::::::m~:::::J~s{:-::: :;~~::::::::::::::::::::::r: ::::::: : 
2-85 

3.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e,
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

, T
ab

le
 2

-1
5 

 (
12

17
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

S
al

es
)



Chapter 9.38 Temporary Special Events 

Sections: 

9.38.010- Purpose 
9.38.020- Duration and Frequency 
9.38.030- Permit Required 
9.38.040- Standards and Regulations 
9.38.050- Requests for Law Enforcement Services at Special Events 
9.38.060- Temporary Special Event Amendment 
9.38.070- Temporary Special Event Revocation 

9.38.010 Purpose 

This Chapter provides development standards for temporary special events to ensure that basic health, 
safety, and community welfare standards are met, while approving suitable temporary special events with 
the minimum necessary conditions or limitations consistent with the temporary nature of the activity. A 
Temporary Special Event Permit allows short-term activities that might not meet the normal development 
or use standards of the applicable zoning district, but may be considered acceptable because of their 
temporary nature. These activities are regulated to avoid incompatibility between the proposed activity 
and surrounding areas. 

9.38.020 Duration and Frequency 

A. Temporary special events shall be permitted with a Temporary Special Event permit as specified 
below which indicate each temporary special event permitted, the zones in which the use is 
allowed, the maximum number of days each use is allowed and the maximum number of 
occurrences in each calendar year: 

TABLE 3-24: 
SPECIAL EVENTS 

Permitted Special Maximum Number of 
Events (With a 

Land Use District Permitted 
Maximum Number of Events Per Calendar 

Special Event Days Per Events Year Per Location 
Permit) and/or Vendor 

Church tent rival 
All Land Use Districts 10 3 

meetings 

All "C" "I" and Public/Quasi 
' ' 

Circus, carnival 
Public Land Use Districts,, all 

10 4 
land use districts in Old Town 
Specific Plan Area 

3-63 

3.b

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
38

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 S

p
ec

ia
l E

ve
n

ts
  (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



TABLE 3-24: 
SPECIAL EVENTS 

Permitted Special Maximum Number of 
Events (With a 

Land Use District Permitted 
Maximum Number of Events Per Calendar 

Special Event Days Per Events Year Per Location 
Permit) and/or Vendor 

Fair, concerts, 
All "C", "I", and Public/Quasi 

parades, exhibits, 
Public Land Use Districts, all land 

festivals, art shows, 
use districts in Old Town Specific 

10 10 
car shows, street fairs 

Plan Area 
or similar events 

All "C" "I" and Public/Quasi 
' ' 

Certified Farmers Public Land Use Districts, all land 
Two days per week 

Permit is valid for one 
Markets use districts in Old Town Specific year 

Plan Area 

Seasonal Holiday 
Non-Residential Districts See Subsection D 3 

Sales Facilities 

B. Where uncertainty exists regarding the interpretation of any provision of this Chapter or its 
application to specific special event which may not be listed, the Director shall determine the 
intent of the provision and or determine whether the proposed event is consistent with the 
provisions of this Chapter. 

C. Multiple Temporary Special Events may be combined into a single permit, however Certified 
Farmers Markets shall comply with the California Code Of Regulations, section 1392 and obtain 
all required permits from the Town. 

D. Seasonal Holiday Sales Facilities. Seasonal holiday sales activities (e.g., Christmas, Halloween, 

3-64 

Thanksgiving, etc.) including temporary residence/security trailers, on nonresidential properties, 
for up to 45 days. 

1. Date of Opening. A Christmas tree sales facility shall not be open for business during any 
calendar day before Thanksgiving. Other holiday sales facilities shall not be open more 
than 30 days before the holiday. 

2. Additional Permits. The applicant shall secure an electrical permit if the facility is to be 
energized and the proper permits from the Building Division for any temporary structure or 
shelter. 

3. Fire Prevention. Each Christmas tree/holiday sales facility shall comply with fire 
prevention standards as approved and enforced by the Fire Chief, including any burning or 
open fires or flocking or painting. 

4. Maintenance. Seasonal holiday sales facilities shall be kept clean and free of debris at all 
times during use of the property. 

5. Merchandise. A seasonal holiday sales facility shall not engage in the sale of any 
merchandise not directly associated with the holiday identified by the applicant as the basis 
for the seasonal holiday facility. 

3.b

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
38

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 S

p
ec

ia
l E

ve
n

ts
  (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



6. Off-street Parking. The Director shall approve all public access. 

7. Removal of Facility. The seasonal holiday facility shall be removed within 14 days after 
Christmas or other holiday. 

9.38.030 Permit Required 

Except as otherwise provided by the Town of Yucca Valley or state law, no person or entity shall operate, 
maintain, conduct, advertise, or provide admission for any temporary special event within the Town of 
Yucca Valley without possessing an unexpired, unsuspended and umevoked permit from the Planning 
Division for each such temporary special event. 

To ensure cleanup and restoration of the site, an applicant may be required to post a deposit at the time the 
application is submitted. Upon the completion of the event and inspection of the site by the Town, 
the deposit may be returned to the applicant if the cleanup and restoration of the site has been 
determined by the Town to be sufficient. 

9.38.040 Standards and Regulations 

Change of Date. Upon the request of the applicant, the issuing authority shall have the power, upon a 
showing of good cause, to change the date for which the permit has been issued provided established 
limitations are complied with in respect to time and location. 

9.38.050 Requests for Law Enforcement Services at Special Events 

Any person or entity required to obtain a permit in accordance with the provisions of this chapter may 
request law enforcement services to preserve the peace at special events. Such application shall be made 
to the Sheriffs Department and shall be in writing, stating the name and address of the applicant, the 
place where the special event is to be held, the estimated number of persons to be present and the purpose 
of the special event. Upon receipt of said application, the Sheriffs Department shall determine whether 
law enforcement services are necessary to preserve the peace, and if the Sheriffs Department so 
determines, and if the services will not reduce the normal and regular on-going service that the Town 
would otherwise provide, the Sheriffs Department shall contract with the applicant to provide the 
services at an amount to include all costs to the Town ofYucca Valley. 

9.38.060 Temporary Special Event Amendment 

Refer to Article 5, Chapter 9.83 Permit Amendments. 

9.38.070 Temporary Special Event Revocation 

Refer to Article 5, Chapter 9.84 Permit Revocations. 

3-65 

3.b

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
38

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 S

p
ec

ia
l E

ve
n

ts
  (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



Chapter 9.39 Temporary Uses and Structures 

Sections: 

9.39.010- Purpose and Intent 
9.39.020- Applicability 
9.39.030- Exempt Temporary Structures and Uses 
9.39.040- Structures and Uses Allowed with Temporary Use Permit 
9.39.050- Permitted Temporary Uses 
9.39.060- Additional Development Standards 
9.39.070- Interim Operation of Activities Requiring a Conditional Use Permit 
9.39.080- Camping or Occupancy of Temporary Structure Prohibited 
9.39.090- Temporary Use Amendment 
9.39.1 00- Temporary Use Revocation 

9.39.010 Purpose and Intent 

This purpose of this Chapter is to provide development and use standards for temporary structures and 
uses that might not meet the normal development or use standards of the applicable land use zoning 
district, but may otherwise be acceptable because of their temporary nature, and to prohibit the use of 
vehicles as substitutes for structures unless otherwise allowed, permitted, or exempted. The intent of these 
standards is to minimize the potential incompatibility of a temporary structure or use of a vehicle in lieu 
of such structures and to regulate the location, operation, and/or duration to protect the public 
convenience, health, interest, safety, and general welfare. 

9.39.020 Applicability 

This Chapter provides development and use standards for structures and uses that fall within the 
categories in Section 9.39.040 (Structures and Uses Allowed with Temporary Use Permit). Regulations 
for temporary special events are provided in Chapter 9.38 (Temporary Special Events). See Chapter 9.72 
(Temporary Use Permit) for permit requirements and procedures. 

9.39.030 Exempt Temporary Structures and Uses 

The temporary structures and uses listed in this Section shall be exempt from obtaining a Temporary Use 
Permit. Temporary structures and uses that do not fall within the following categories shall comply with 
Section 9.39.040 (Structures and Uses Allowed with Temporary Use Permit). 

A. Construction Yards - On-Site. On-site contractors' construction yards, for an approved 
construction project. The construction yard shall be removed immediately upon completion of the 
construction project, or the expiration of the Building Permit authorizing the construction project, 
whichever first occurs. 

B. Emergency Facilities. Emergency public health and safety needs/land use activities, as 
determined by the Town. 

3-66 

3.c

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
39

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 U

se
s 

an
d

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
 (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



C. Events on Sites Approved For Public Assembly. An event on the site of, or within, a golf 
course, meeting hall, religious facility, school, theater, or other similar facility designed, and 
approved by the Town for public assembly. 

E. Location Filming. The temporary use of a specific site for the location filming of commercials, 
movies, videos, and similar filming, for the time specified by the Director. Even though this use is 
exempt from a Temporary Use Permit, it may require a Film Permit issued by the Community 
Development Department and processed in compliance with Chapter 9.78 (Filming Permits). 

F. Public Property or Public Right-of-Way. Construction and maintenance activities conducted on 
public properties that are authorized by an Encroachment Permit issued by the Department of 
Public Works. 

G. Emergency public health and safety activities. 

9.39.040 Structures and Uses Allowed with Temporary Use Permit 

The temporary structures and uses identified in this Section shall be allowed in any land use zoning 
district subject to the standards in this Section and a Temporary Use Permit issued in compliance with 
Section 9.72 (Temporary Use Permits). 

A. Batch Plants. Batch plants necessary for the construction of major public infrastructure 
improvements provided proper review in compliance with the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) is completed. 

B. Construction Yards - Off-site. Off-site contractors' construction yards, for an approved 
construction project. The construction yard shall be removed immediately upon completion of the 
construction project, or the expiration of the Building Permit authorizing the construction project, 
whichever first occurs. 

9.39.050 Permitted Temporary Uses 

An application for a Temporary use Permit shall be required for the following temporary uses and shall be 
subject to conditions established in this Code and any other additional conditions as may be prescribed by 
the Director. The following temporary uses may be permitted subject to the approval of a Temporary Use 
Permit: 

A. Temporary Residential Quarters. Manufactured homes and self-contained recreational vehicles 
may be used for temporary residential quarters only in the following instances and for a period of 
time not to exceed one (1) year with one (1) year extensions; not to exceed an aggregate total of 
four ( 4) years: 

1. Temporary residential quarters for individuals involved in the construction of the first 
permanent dwelling unit on the same parcel. Such Temporary Use Permits may be 
approved when construction permits have been issued by the Building and Safety Division; 

2. Temporary residential quarters for security personnel for construction projects for which 
construction permits have been issued by the Building and Safety Division; 

3. Temporary residential quarters for security personnel for the short-term protection of 
permitted commercial, commercial agricultural, industrial or institutional use; 

3-67 

3.c

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
39

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 U

se
s 

an
d

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
 (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



4. The provisions of this Section shall not apply to public school property; 

5. Temporary Use Permits issued pursuant to this Section shall become invalid upon the 
cancellation of the building permit or the completion of the construction project for which 
the building permit and Temporary Use Permit were issued. 

B. Temporary Nonresidential Quarters. Manufactured homes, commercial coaches, self-contained 
recreational vehicles, mobile office vehicles or other appropriate and approved structures may be 
used for temporary nonresidential quarters as an accessory use to a primary permitted use. Such 
temporary nonresidential quarters may be used to provide temporary office, retail, meeting, 
assembly, wholesale, manufacturing and/or storage space for commercial, commercial 
agricultural, industrial or institutional uses for a period oftime not to exceed one (1) year with one 
(1) year extensions; not to exceed an aggregate total of four (4) years. 

1. The Town shall determine that the proposed use complies with the development standards 
in Article 2 (Zoning Districts and Development Standards) including: 

a. Adequate access, circulation, and parking. 

b. Appropriate buffering from abutting uses. 

c. Fencing. 

d. Landscaping. 

e. Lighting. 

2. Under exceptional or extraordinary circumstances, a Temporary Use Permit for temporary 
nonresidential structures may be extended beyond the five-year limitation at the discretion of the 
Town 

C. Temporary Construction Office Quarters. In conjunction with approved construction projects, 
manufactured homes, commercial coaches, self-contained recreational vehicles, mobile office 
vehicles or other appropriate and approved structures may be used for temporary construction 
office quarters for a period of time not to exceed one (1) year with one (1) year extensions; not to 
exceed an aggregate total of four (4) years. Temporary Use Permits issued pursuant to this 
Section shall become invalid upon the cancellation of the building permit or the completion of the 
construction project for which the building permit and Temporary Use Permit were issued. 

D. Temporary Real Estate Model Home/Sales Offices. Dwelling units located in residential 
developments and subdivisions may be used for temporary real estate model home/sales office. 
Said model home sales office may be used only for conducting the activities necessary for the 
initial sale or lease of the land or structure located within the residential development or 
subdivision in which the model home/sales office is located. 

3-68 

1. Model Homes. A model home or model home complex may be authorized before the 
completion of subdivision improvements in compliance with the following standards. 

3.c

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
39

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 U

se
s 

an
d

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
 (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



a. The sales office and any off-street parking shall be converted back to residential use and/or 
removed before the issuance of the Final Occupancy Permit or within 14 days from the 
close of escrow of the last parcel in the subdivision, whichever first occurs. 

b. The model home complex shall be used to sell only units within the development within 
which the complex is located. 

c. Model home permits and model home sign permits will be finaled and the model homes 
will be allowed to be open to the public only after all required bonding has been 
accomplished and accepted by the Town and a Temporary Use Permit has been issued. 

d. At least one model home shall be fully landscaped with drought tolerant xeriscape 
materials. 

e. The Town may require other conditions of approval deemed necessary to protect the public 
health, safety, and general welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood. 

2. Real Estate Sales Offices. A temporary real estate sales office (modular structure) may be 
established within the area of an approved subdivision, solely for the first sale of homes. An 
application for a temporary real estate office may be approved for a maximum of 12 months 
from the date of approval. 

E. Temporary On-Your-Lot Builder Model Home/Sales Office. Single family dwelling units may 
be used for temporary on-your-lot builder model homes/sales offices subject to a Temporary Use 
Permit and the provisions of the Chapter, including the following: 

1. Intent. The provisions of this section are intended to regulate the use of a single family 
dwelling unit when used as a temporary sales office and model home for the sale of 
construction services to build single family residential units on vacant lots. These 
provisions are not intended to allow a permanent or temporary real estate office involved in 
real estate sales other than those involving lots sold in conjunction with the construction 
services being offered; 

2. Finding. Prior to the issuance of a Temporary Use Permit, the reviewing authority shall 
find and justify that the proposed on-your-lot builder model homes/sales office structure is 
located fronting on a roadway designated by the Circulation Plan of the General Plan as 
identified in (5) below. 

3. Activities Restricted to Construction Services and Related Sales of Vacant Lots. The on
your-lot builder model home/sales office shall be used only for the sale of construction 
services to build single-family residential dwelling units on vacant lots and related real 
estate sales. Real estate sales shall be limited to the sale of vacant lots in conjunction with 
the sale construction services for the same lot. Real estate sales shall be an accessory and 
subordinate use to the primary use of construction service or sales. 

4. Inspection Annually by Fire Department. An annual inspection shall be made by the Fire 
Department in order to ensure compliance with conditions of approval of the Temporary 
Use Permit. 

3-69 

3.c

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
39

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 U

se
s 

an
d

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
 (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



5. Location of Structure. The on-your-lot builder model home/sales office structure shall be 
located fronting on a roadway designated by the General Plan in the Circulation Element as 
one of the following: 

(1) Highway (6lanes divided) 
(2) Highway ( 4 lanes divided) 
(3) Arterial ( 4 lanes divided) 
(4) Collector (4lanes) 
(5) Collector (2 lanes) 
(6) Industrial (2 lanes). 

6.. Parking. A minimum of two paved and two other alternate parking spaces shall be 
provided. The Town shall approve alternate parking spaces subject to surfacing 
requirements and possible alternate locations (e.g., on-street parking) where it is deemed 
necessary and appropriate. 

7. Performance Bond. A bond shall be required to ensure removal of any signs or flags and to 
reconvert, where necessary, any garage conversion. 

8. Xeriscape. The model home shall be fully landscaped with drought-tolerant xeriscape 
materials. 

9. Transfer of Permit. A Temporary Use Permit for an on-your-lot builder model home/sales 
office may be transferred to another party. A transfer shall not entitle the new owner to use 
the Temporary Use Permit for a longer time period than five years from the issuance of the 
original permit. The Code Enforcement Division shall be notified of any transfer of 
ownership. 

(a) Agreement to Terminate a Temporary Use. Before the issuance of the Temporary Use 
Permit for the first year and as a condition of the permit approval, the permittee shall enter 
into an agreement with the Town, which shall be recorded in the Official Records of the 
County by the County Recorder. The agreement shall establish the responsibility of the 
permittee to comply with the provisions of this Chapter. This will include 
acknowledgement that the permittee shall terminate the model home/sales office no later 
than five years from the date of the initial permit and shall restore the structure to a use 
allowed by the current land use zoning district in which the subject property is located. 

F. Temporary Outdoor Storage or Sales. Interim operation of an exterior storage area or short-term 
exterior sales display area. Provisions regulating seasonal sales lots are in 9.39.040 (D) (Seasonal 
Holiday Sales Facilities). 

H. Temporary Work Trailers. A trailer or mobile home used as a temporary work site for 
employees of a business; provided, that: 

3-70 

1. The use is authorized by a Building Permit for the trailer or mobile home, and the Building 
Permit for the permanent structure; 

2. The use is appropriate because: 

3.c

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
39

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 U

se
s 

an
d

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
 (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



a. The trailer or mobile home will be in place during construction or remodeling of a 
permanent commercial or manufacturing structure for a maximum of 12 months, or upon 
expiration of the Building Permit for the permanent structure, whichever first occurs; or 

b. The applicant has demonstrated that the temporary work site is a short-term necessity for a 
maximum of 12 months, while a permanent work site is being obtained; and 

3. The trailer or mobile home is removed before final building inspection or the issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy for the permanent structure. 

4. A Temporary Use Permit issued in conjunction with a construction project shall become 
invalid upon: 

a. Cancellation of the Building Permit for the approved temporary structure or use; or 

b. Completion of the Building Permit for the approved temporary structure or use; or 

c. Expiration of the time for which the approval has been granted. 

I. Temporary signs. See Section 9.36.100 (Temporary Signs). 

J. Temporary Transportable Treatment Units. Temporary Transportable Treatment Units 
(TTTU) used for treating hazardous waste or groundwater contamination. 

1. Temporary transportable treatment units shall only be allowed in either of the following 
instances: 

a. The site where a TTTU will be located and operated complies with the siting criteria and 
procedures identified in the San Bernardino County Hazardous Waste Management Plan; 
or 

b. The County Environmental Health Services Division determines that the proposed TTTU 
use does not create additional health risks as demonstrated by a site-specific health risk 
assessment and a Land Use Compliance Review is issued and recorded in compliance with 
Chapter 9.66 (Land Use Compliance Review). 

2. A Temporary Use Permit issued in conjunction with a TTTU shall become invalid upon 
the occurrence of one of the following: 

a. Violation of a permitting requirement; or 

b. Completion of the project; or 

c. Expiration of the time for which the approval has been granted. 

3. The County Environmental Health Services Division shall conduct an annual inspection in 
order to ensure compliance with any conditions of approval. 

4. A Temporary Use Permit for a temporary transportable treatment unit shall not be granted 
or extended for a period of time to exceed five years after the date the Temporary Use 
Permit was first issued. 

3-71 

3.c

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
39

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 U

se
s 

an
d

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
 (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



K. Accessory Storage Structures. A detached, accessory storage structure, where the primary use 
does not yet exist, shall only be allowed with appropriate bonding to remove the accessory 
structure if the primary use is not completed within two years. 

L. Similar Temporary Activities. A temporary activity that the Director determines is similar to the 
other activities listed in this Section and compatible with the applicable land use zoning district 
and surrounding land uses. 

9.39.060 Additional Development Standards 

A. Additional Standards. In addition to the standards in Section 9.39.050 (Permitted Temporary 
Uses), above, the Director shall establish the following additional standards for a proposed 
temporary structure or use, using the requirements of the applicable zoning district and Article 2 
(Zoning Districts and Development Standards) for guidance: 

1. Structure and Property Development Improvements. Access, floor areas, heights, 
landscaping, off-street parking, setbacks, signs, utilities, and other structure and property 
development improvements and features; 

2. Removal of the Activity and Site Restoration. Measures for removal of the activity and site 
restoration, to ensure that no changes to the site would limit the range of possible future 
land uses otherwise allowed by this Development Code. Performance security may be 
required before installation of the temporary structure or initiation of the temporary use to 
ensure cleanup after the structure is removed or the use is finished in compliance with 
Section 9.80.030(Performance Guarantees); and 

3. Time Limitation. Limitation on the duration of an approved "temporary structure," to a 
maximum of 12 months, so that it shall not become a permanent or long-term structure. 

B. Display of Permit and Approvals. A valid Temporary Use Permit shall be prominently displayed 
so that it is visible at all times from the exterior of the permitted structure or use and available for 
inspection. A permitted temporary structure shall provide evidence of approval by the State 
Department of Housing and Community Development as required by the Health and Safety Code 
or the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, where applicable. 

C. Other Regulations. Installation of a permitted structure or use shall comply with the requirements 
and regulations of the Department and the following: 

1. Development Code. 

2. Building and Safety Division. 

3. Fire Department. 

4. Environmental Health Services Division. 

5. Applicable State and Federal regulations. 

9.39.070 Interim Operation of Activities Requiring a Conditional Use Permit 

A. Interim Operation of Activities Requiring a Conditional Use Permit. A Temporary Use Permit 
may be issued for the interim operation of any use requiring a Conditional Use Permit for a period 

3-72 

3.c

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
39

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 U

se
s 

an
d

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
 (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



of time not to exceed 12 months, provided the Temporary Use Permit does not authorize the 
construction or establishment of new permanent structures and the review authority makes the 
findings required for approval of a Conditional Use Permit in compliance with Chapter 9.63 
(Conditional Use Permit). 

B. Concurrent Application Filing. The Temporary Use Permit application shall be filed 
concurrently with an application for Conditional Use Permit, where appropriate. 

9.39.080 Camping or Occupancy of Temporary Structure Prohibited 

A. Prohibited Use. 

1. Prohibition. It shall be unlawful to place, install, build, maintain, use, or occupy any 
temporary structure on any parcel of real property subject to the provisions of this 
Development Code for the purpose of camping, dwelling, maintaining or establishing 
temporary or permanent residency unless such placement, installation, construction, 
maintenance, use, or occupancy is first authorized by a Temporary Use Permit, Special 
Event Permit, or other land use approval required by this Development Code or as 
otherwise made an exception herein. 

B. Applicability. This section shall apply to the following temporary structure: 

1. Any tent, lean-to, box, or other make-shift building or enclosure constructed of any 
material for which no building permit has been issued and no Temporary Use Permit, 
Special Use Permit, or other land use approval has been granted; 

2. Any vacant building, temporary or permanent, deemed substandard pursuant to Chapter 
6.08 (Maintenance of Abandoned Properties) of Title 6 (Health and Sanitation) of the 
Yucca Valley Municipal Code; and 

3. Any building under construction and unfinished, regardless of whether or not building, 
(plumbing, etc.) permits have been issued. 

C. Camping in Vehicle Prohibited. 

1. Prohibition. It shall be unlawful to place, maintain, use, or occupy any vehicle on any 
parcel of real property for the purpose of camping, dwelling, or maintaining or establishing 
a temporary or permanent residency unless such placement, maintenance, use, or 
occupancy is authorized pursuant to this chapter. 

D. Vehicle Applicability. This section shall apply to the following vehicle types: 

1. All recreational motor vehicles; 
2. Recreational towed vehicles; 
3. Mobile homes; 
4. Commercial coaches; 
5. Office trailers; 
6. Park trailers 
7. Passenger vehicles; 
8. Trailers; 
9. Campers; and 

3-73 

3.c

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
39

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 U

se
s 

an
d

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
 (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



10. Commercial vehicles. 

E. Notice to Abate. 

1. The Director may issue to any person occupying any structure or vehicle parked in 
violation of this Section a notice, including an order to vacate the structure or vehicle after 
30 days of the date of the notice. 

2. If deemed necessary by the Director to prevent or remedy an immediate threat to health 
and safety of the public or occupants of the structure, the Director may issue any person 
occupying any structure or vehicle prohibited in violation of this Section an order to vacate 
the structure or vehicle with less than 30 days notice; or institute any appropriate action or 
proceeding to prevent, restrain, correct, or abate the violation or nuisance. 

9.39.090 Temporary Use Amendment 

Refer to Article 5, Chapter 9.83 Permit Amendments. 

9.39.100 Temporary Use Revocation 

Refer to Article 5, Chapter 9.84 Permit Revocations. 

3-74 

3.c

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
39

 -
 T

em
p

o
ra

ry
 U

se
s 

an
d

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
 (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



 

 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
YUCCA VALLEY, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE YUCCA VALLEY 
DEVELOPMENT CODE, TITLE 9, ARTICLE II, CHAPTER 9.09, 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS, BY ADDING SECTION 9.09.060, 
COMMERCIAL ESTABLISHMENT OUTDOOR DISPLAY. 

 
 

9.09.060-Commerical Establishment, Outdoor Display 

A. General Provisions.  Commercial establishments in the C-C, C-G, C-O, C-MU and C-N zoning 

districts are allowed outdoor display of merchandise based upon the following standards. 

 1.  All outdoor display shall be removed at the close of business operations. 

2.  Outdoor displays proposed for those commercial establishments open for business 24 hours 

per day require Planning Commission approval of a Conditional Use Permit for outdoor displays. 

3.  Outdoor display areas shall not be located within parking lots, landscape areas, public 

easements or rights of way. 

4.  Outdoor display areas shall conform to all ADA accessibility standards and requirements, in 

addition to San Bernardino County Fire standards. 

5.  Outdoor display areas shall be limited to 250 square feet in total area. 

6.  Outdoor display areas proposed in excess of 250 square feet shall file a Conditional Use 

Permit application for review and consideration by the Planning Commission. 

 

3.d

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

am
p

le
 O

u
td

o
o

r 
D

is
p

la
y 

O
rd

in
an

ce
  (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY, CALIFORNIA, 

AMENDING THE YUCCA VALLEY DEVELOPMENT 

CODE, TITLE 9, ARTICLE III, CHAPTER 9.38, 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, BY ADDING 

REGULATIONS FOR PARKING LOT SALES. 
 

Chapter 9.38 Temporary Special Events 
 

 

Sections: 

 

9.38.010 – Purpose 
9.38.020 – Duration and Frequency 
9.38.030 – Permit Required 
9.38.040 – Standards and Regulations 
9.38.050 – Requests for Law Enforcement Services at Special Events 
9.38.060 – Temporary Special Event Amendment 
9.38.070 – Temporary Special Event Revocation 

 

 

Purpose  

This Chapter provides development standards for temporary special events to ensure that basic 

health, safety, and community welfare standards are met, while approving suitable temporary 

special events with the minimum necessary conditions or limitations consistent with the 

temporary nature of the activity. A Temporary Special Event Permit allows short-term activities 

that might not meet the normal development or use standards of the applicable zoning district, 

but may be considered acceptable because of their temporary nature. These activities are 

regulated to avoid incompatibility between the proposed activity and surrounding areas. 
 

 Duration and Frequency 

A. Temporary special events shall be permitted with a Temporary Special Event permit as 

specified below which indicate each temporary special event permitted, the zones in which 

the use is allowed, the maximum number of days each use is allowed and the maximum 

number of occurrences in each calendar year: 

 

 

3.e

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

am
p

le
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
e 

O
rd

in
an

ce
  (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



 

 

TABLE 3-24:  

SPECIAL EVENTS 

Permitted Special 

Events (With a 

Special Event 

Permit) 

Land Use District Permitted 
Maximum Number of 

Days Per Events 

Maximum Number 

of Events Per 

Calendar Year Per 

Location and/or 

Vendor 

Church tent rival 

meetings 
All Land Use Districts 10 3 

Circus, carnival 

All “C”, “I”, and Public/Quasi 

Public Land Use Districts, , 

all land use districts in Old 

Town Specific Plan Area 

10 4 

Fair, concerts, 

parades, exhibits, 

festivals, art shows, 

car shows, street 

fairs or similar 

events 

All “C”, “I”, and Public/Quasi 

Public Land Use Districts, all 

land use districts in Old Town 

Specific Plan Area 

10 10 

Certified Farmers 

Markets 

All “C”, “I”, and Public/Quasi 

Public Land Use Districts,  all 

land use districts in Old Town 

Specific Plan Area 

Two days per week 
Permit is valid for 

one year 

Commercial 

Establishment 

Parking Lot Sales 

All C-C, C-G, C-0, C-MU, 

and C-N Zoning Districts 
Three days per event Four Annually 

Seasonal Holiday 

Sales Facilities 
Non-Residential Districts See Subsection D 3 

 

 

Where uncertainty exists regarding the interpretation of any provision of this Chapter or its 

application to specific special event which may not be listed, the Director shall determine the intent 

of the provision and or determine whether the proposed event is consistent with the provisions of 

this Chapter. 
 

C. Multiple Temporary Special Events may be combined into a single permit, however 

Certified Farmers Markets shall comply with the California Code of Regulations, section 

1392 and obtain all required permits from the Town. 

 

D.  Seasonal Holiday Sales Facilities. Seasonal holiday sales activities (e.g., Christmas, 

Halloween, Thanksgiving, etc.) including temporary residence/security trailers, on 

nonresidential properties, for up to 45 days. 
 

1. Date of Opening. A Christmas tree sales facility shall not be open for business 

during any calendar day before Thanksgiving. Other holiday sales facilities shall 

not be open more than 30 days before the holiday. 

3.e

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

am
p

le
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
e 

O
rd

in
an

ce
  (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



 

 

 

2. Additional Permits. The applicant shall secure an electrical permit if the facility is 

to be energized and the proper permits from the Building Division for any 

temporary structure or shelter. 
 

3. Fire Prevention. Each Christmas tree/holiday sales facility shall comply with fire 

prevention standards as approved and enforced by the Fire Chief, including any 

burning or open fires or flocking or painting. 
 

4. Maintenance. Seasonal holiday sales facilities shall be kept clean and free of debris 

at all times during use of the property. 

 

5. Merchandise. A seasonal holiday sales facility shall not engage in the sale of any 

merchandise not directly associated with the holiday identified by the applicant as 

the basis for the seasonal holiday facility. 

 

6. Off-street Parking. The Director shall approve all public access. 

 

7. Removal of Facility. The seasonal holiday facility shall be removed within 14 days 

after Christmas or other holiday. 

 

E. Commercial Establishment Parking Lot Sales 

 
 

1. Temporary Special Event Permits for Parking Lot Sales shall be limited to once per quarter 

in any calendar year. 

2. Parking Lot Sales events shall be limited to three consecutive days. 

3. Minimum parking standards shall be maintained. 

4. No merchandise shall be located within the public right-of-way. 

5. Outdoor display areas shall conform to all ADA accessibility standards and requirements, 

in addition to San Bernardino County Fire standards. 
 

 

 

 

Permit Required 

Except as otherwise provided by the Town of Yucca Valley or state law, no person or entity shall 

operate, maintain, conduct, advertise, or provide admission for any temporary special event 

within the Town of Yucca Valley without possessing an unexpired, unsuspended and unrevoked 

permit from the Planning Division for each such temporary special event. 

 

To ensure cleanup and restoration of the site, an applicant may be required to post a deposit at the 

time the application is submitted.  Upon the completion of the event and inspection of the site by 

the Town, the deposit may be returned to the applicant if the cleanup and restoration of the site has 

been determined by the Town to be sufficient. 

 

 

3.e

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

am
p

le
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
e 

O
rd

in
an

ce
  (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)



 

 

Standards and Regulations 

A. Change of Date.  Upon the request of the applicant, the issuing authority shall have the 

power, upon a showing of good cause, to change the date for which the permit has 

been issued provided established limitations are complied with in respect to time 

and location. 

 

 

Requests for Law Enforcement Services at Special Events 

Any person or entity required to obtain a permit in accordance with the provisions of this chapter 

may request law enforcement services to preserve the peace at special events. Such application 

shall be made to the Sheriff’s Department and shall be in writing, stating the name and address of 

the applicant, the place where the special event is to be held, the estimated number of persons to 

be present and the purpose of the special event. Upon receipt of said application, the Sheriff’s 

Department shall determine whether law enforcement services are necessary to preserve the 

peace, and if the Sheriff’s Department so determines, and if the services will not reduce the 

normal and regular on-going service that the Town would otherwise provide, the Sheriff’s 

Department shall contract with the applicant to provide the services at an amount to include all 

costs to the Town of Yucca Valley. 
 

 

Temporary Special Event Amendment 

Refer to Article 5, Chapter 9.83 Permit Amendments. 

 

 

Temporary Special Event Revocation 

Refer to Article 5, Chapter 9.84 Permit Revocations. 
 

 
 

3.e

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

am
p

le
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
e 

O
rd

in
an

ce
  (

12
17

 :
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
S

al
es

)


	Agenda Packet
	Opening Ceremonies
	Call To Order
	Roll Call
	Roll Call

	Pledge of Allegiance

	Approval of Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	1. Minutes Approval
	1. Minutes of Nov 10, 2015 6:00 PM
	Printout: Minutes of Nov 10, 2015 6:00 PM



	Department Reports
	2. 1219 : Sage Estates NPP
	Printout: 1219 : Sage Estates NPP
	a. 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15
	b. 02 Planning Commission Minutes 12-02-2014
	c. 03 Section 9.07.130 Native Plants

	3. 1217 : Parking Lot Sales
	Printout: 1217 : Parking Lot Sales
	a. Development Code, Article 2, Table 2-15
	b. Development Code Chapter 9.38 - Temporary Special Events
	c. Development Code Chapter 9.39 - Temporary Uses and Structures
	d. Sample Outdoor Display Ordinance
	e. Sample Parking Lot Sale Ordinance


	Future Agenda Items
	Public Comments
	Staff Reports and Comments
	

	Commissioner Reports and Comments
	Announcements
	

	Adjournment

	Appendix
	1.1 · Minutes of Nov 10, 2015 6:00 PM
	2 · 1219 : Sage Estates NPP
	2.a · 01 Landscape and NPP amendment request 10-29-15
	2.b · 02 Planning Commission Minutes 12-02-2014
	2.c · 03 Section 9.07.130 Native Plants

	3 · 1217 : Parking Lot Sales
	3.a · Development Code, Article 2, Table 2-15
	3.b · Development Code Chapter 9.38 - Temporary Special Events
	3.c · Development Code Chapter 9.39 - Temporary Uses and Structures
	3.d · Sample Outdoor Display Ordinance
	3.e · Sample Parking Lot Sale Ordinance



